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To the Members of Arvind Goodhili Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Arvind Goodhill Suit
Manufacturing Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March, 2017 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind As
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the I:d AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
L‘* misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
‘I making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2017, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matter f

The comparative financial inforﬁnation of the Company for the year ended 31t March, 2016
and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 15t April, 2015 included in these Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) which were audited by us, whose report for the year ended 31t March, 2016 and
31st March, 2015 dated 12 May, 2016 and 14%"" May, 2015 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those flnanual statements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been
audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies |(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India injterms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give

in the Annexure A a statement bn the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
_ to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and o tamed all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper bdoks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appedrs from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Jtatement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow [Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agr¢ement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 315t March, 2017 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B",

(@) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of tihe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

Provision has been made in the Ind AS financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8™ November 2016 to 30t December, 2016. Based on audit
procedures and relying on the management representation, we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with books of account maintained by the Company
and as produced to us by the Management - Refer Note 38 to the financial
statements, ‘

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 110t7w

-

—

L{N—

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner

Membership No. 100892

angalore

Apr 23,2017
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND

AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE
LIMITED

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date,

()

(ii)

(ii)

- (iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details ana situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our
opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) There are no immovable properties held in the name of the Company and thus
requirement of clause (i) (c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book recorzs were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Consequently, requirements of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

The Company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security
or made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Consequently,
requirements of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

* has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or

any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the Company’s product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the
order is not applicable. :

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were
in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payabile.

pd>
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) According ‘to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable as on March 31, 2017 on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by
the Company for the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending application.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not pzid any managerial remuneration during the year under
review. Consequently, requirements of Clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him.

According to th‘e nature of the business, the Company is not required to'be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892
Bangalore

Pipy i) 3 2017
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING
PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Goodhill
Suit Manufacturing Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controis, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

b
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A cqmpany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of tha assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may beccme
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”. S : :

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110t7w

Oprt e Ay

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore

April <5, 2017
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manut‘ac(uring Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017

ASSETS

L Non-current assets
() Property, plant and equipment

w

49,43,37,587 51,06,22,873

i N 44,23,66,524
(b) Capua.l work-in-progress 5 19,72,581 10,623 2,78,94,726
(©) Intangible assets 6 19,28 178 25,20.498 8,78,550
(d) Financial assets
(i) Loans 7 - - 1,45,839
(ii) Other financial assets 7 4,22,14,569 3,46,05,907 3,40,25,503
(e) Other non-current assets 8 38,79,755 43,95176 99,55,868
(f) Deferred tax agsets (net) 25 4,48,93 555 ' - -
- \ \
Total non-current assets 58,92.26,225 55,21,55,077 51,52,67,010
ILCurrent assets .
(a) Inventories 9 25,52,45,198 12,68,47,761 2,56,04,144
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivableg 27 13,41,76 672 9.29,12,763 4,54,15,387
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 7 14,19,537 1,02,45,964 9,63,287
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 7 18,03,300 18,03,300 -
(iv) Loans 7 - 3,05,075 2,49,996
(v) Others financial assets 7 55,71,428 1,25,23 949 1,77,51,089
(¢) Current tax assets (net) . 10 17,11,835 27,39,571 32,28.,461
(d) Other current assets 8 6,35,70,776 2,91,06,239 1,14,84,185
Total current assets 46,34,98,746 27,64,84,622 10,46,96,549
) ———— 0, 180 — 0l e sk a LI >
Total Assets 1,05,27,24,971 82,86,39,699 61,99.63,559
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 84,00,000 84,00,000 68,00,000
Other equity 12 37,13.47,093 34,54,36,775 26,57,59.401
Total equity 37,97,47,093 35g8,§6,775 27,25,59,401
—————lA D YT St LU
LIABILITIES
L Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
[6)] Borrowings 13 16,10,98 446 21,35,53,522 21,24,00,000
(if) Trade payables 13 - - -
(iit) Other financial liabilities 13 - : - .
(b) Long-term provisions 14 61,45.074 33,41,385 21,63,079
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 - 3,34,629 -
(d) Government grants 15 3,20,70,755 3,43,62.586 -
Total non-current liabilities 19,93,14,275 25,15,92.122 21,45,63,079
ILCurrent liabilities
(2) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 17,61,38,941 5,08,22,623 2,96,51,459
(ii) Trade payables 13 20,10,66,964 10,36,07,495 2,91,79,850
(iii) Other financial Liabilities 13 8,28,38 835 6,27,87,116 7,23,52,468
(b) Other current Liabilities 16 1,13,20,262 38,70,419 16,17,788
(c) Short-term provisions 14 1,17,720 53,218 39514
(d) Government grants 15 21,80,881 20,69.931 -
Total current liabilities 47,36,63,603 22,32.10,802 13,28,41,079
———— Y ———e e L Vs
Total equity and liabilities ’ AZJA?L_] ==82é8g,§_2,‘69=9 61,99,63,559
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes érp an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date *, )
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Aécounﬁnts Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
ICAI Firm'}ﬁegis ipn No.110417W
. -
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. ]
Partner N Director Director
Membership No.100892
Bangalore

April 23,2017
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* Arvind Goodhill Suit Manuf, ing Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2017

ncome
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 17 52,11,13,054 42,85,40,327
Sale of Services . 17 2,75,09,883 4,67,34,924
Operating Income 17 . 3,50,68 915 1,73,94 661
Revenue from operations 58,36,91,852 49,26,69,912
Other income 18 3,62,51,334 1,36,33,698
Total income @ 61,99,43,186 50,63,03,610
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed . 19 30,65,46,261 24,34,88416
Purchase of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (6,99,93,042) (4,47,78,262)
20
Employee benefits expense 21 23,90,26,267 18,92,20,109
Finance costs 22 . 3,37,95,361 1,91,33,372
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 2,99,32,706 2,72,32,105
Other expenses 24 10,27,79,081 7,22,67,913
Total expenses (In 64,20,86,634 50,65,63,653
Profit before exceptional items and tax (IID=(I-11) (2,21,43,448) (2,60,043)
Exceptional items av) - -
Profit before tax V)= I11-1v) (2,21,43,448) (2,60,043)
Tax expense .
Current tax 25 - ' -
Deferred tax 25 (4,61,01,289) (2,43,833)
Total tax expense (VD (4,61,01,289) (2,43,833)
Profit for the period (VID) = (v-v]) 2,39,57,841 (16,210)
Other comprehensive income
A. Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 12 18,68,729 18,72,046
Income tax effect 25 (5.77437) (5,78.462)
: : 12,91,292 12,93,584
Net other comp‘rehenslve income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 12,91,292 12,93 584
subsequent periods (A) C .
B. Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Net gains / (loss) on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 12 9,56,853 -
Income tax effect 25 (2,95,668) -
Net other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (B) 6,61,185 -
Total other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VIII) = (A+B) 19,52,477 12,93,584
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VII+VII) 2,59,10,318 M
Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs, 10/- (March 31, 2016:
Rs.10/-)]
Basic 29 28.52 (0.02)
Diluted 29 28.52 (0.02)

Sm__mngx of significant accounting policies . 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the ﬁnangial statements,

As per our report of even date )

For Sorab S, Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
W K

ICAI Firm's Regisggation No, 110417
] —
« Chol reyas B, Director Director

Partner
Membership No.100892
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Particulars

A Operating activities

Profit Before taxation

Year ended

Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees

Adjustments 1o reconcile profit before tay 1o net cash flows: (221,43,448) (2,60,043)
Depreciation /Amortization 2,99.32.706
Interest Income (’ 1 4’29’87 6) 2,72,32,105
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost 3 37’95 ’361 1(;1’10’981)
Bad Debts Written Off " 989501 133,372
Allowance for Bad Debts 62:92: 182 :
Government grants {21,80,881) : (34,29,980)
6,73,98,993
Operflting Pr"oﬁt before Working Capital Changes 4,52,55,545 :,;:,::j;g
Working Capital Changes:
Changes in Inventories ( 12,83,97,437) (10,12,43,617)
Changes in trade payables 9,74,59,469 7,44,27 645
Changes in other current liabilities 74,49,843 22,52,631
Changes in other financial liabilities 12,51,719 ( 1,81,65,352)
Changes in provisions 47,36,918 30,64,056
Changes in loans and advances 3,05,075 90,760
Changes in trade receivables (4,85,45,592) (4,74,97,376)
Changes in other current assets (3,39,49,116) (1,20,61,362)
Changes in other financial assets 3,00,712 46,46,736
Changes in Other Bank Balances - (18,03,300)
Net Changes in Working Capital 9,93,88,409 9,62,89,179
Cash Generated from Operations (5,41,32,864) ‘ (5,47,24,706)
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) 10,27.736 4.88.890
Net Cash from Operating Activities (5,31,05,128) (5,42,35,816)
‘B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible/intangible assets (1,50,17,058) (6,92,46,299)
Government Grant received - 3,98,62,497
Interest Income 14,29 876 11,10,981
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (1,35,87,182) (2,82,72,821)
C  Cash Flow from Financing A ctivities
Issue of Share Capital - 16,00,000
Securities Premium received - 7,84,00,000
Changes in long term Borrowings (3,36,55,076) 97,53,522
Changes in short term borrowings 12,53,16,318 2,11,71,164
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (3,37,95,361) (1,91,33,372)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 5,78,65,881 9,17,91,314
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (88,26,429) 92,82,677
Cash & Cash -€quivalent at the beginning of the period 1,02,45,964 9,63,287
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the period 14,19,537 1,02.45,964
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
) Rupees Rupees
g::: ::g :;;h equivalents comprise of: (Note 7 73 40255
Balances with Banks 14,19,064 1,02,05,709
Cash and cash equivalents 14,19,537 1,02,45,964
Effect of Exchange Rate Chan €S -
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 14,19,537 1,02,45,964

As per our report of even date attached
For, Sorab S. Engineer & Co,

Firm Registration No. 110417w A

Chartered AccouZuts
Ot il Qs -

CA. Chokshi Skreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
April 23,2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Director
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Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 '

1. Corporate Information

Arvind Goodhill Suijt Manufacturing Private Limited is a Joint Venture between Arvind Limited, Goodhill
Corporation, Japan and F-One Limited, Japan. The Company has set up a project of manufacturing Suits.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
April 23, 2017.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as
issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards specified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP™) and other relevant provision
of the Act. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial statements

loss and Statement of cash flow,
2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

® Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fajr value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

® Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;
* Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
* Value in Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule I1I.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial

statements consistently to all the periods presented, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance
Sheet as at April 1, 2015 being the date of transition to Ind AS:



3.1. Current versus non-current classification

3.2.

The Company presents assets and

. . liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification,

An asset is current when it is:
® Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
‘¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
*  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reportiﬁg period; or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. '

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
® Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
® Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred
after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.



3.3.

34.

Foreign currencies - -

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functiona] currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

* In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

A fair valye measurement of a non-financia] asset takes into account 3 market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best yse,



Tke Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fajr value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
® Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. '

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for
sale.

valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s
Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

* Significant accounting Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions
- .- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
® Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition



e Investment properties
* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such-parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
' recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision
are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery other than Lab equipment and
Leasehold Improvements.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

The management believes that the usefil life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the usefil
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT to the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

0 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.



3.6.

3.7.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment
at cost eligible under Ind AS 16 less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation )
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period whichever
is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over its useful validity period of § years.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at
cost eligible under Ind AS 38 less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any



3.8. Inventories

3.9.

® Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

realisable value. Excise duty wherever applicable is provided on finished goods lying within the factory
and bonded warehouse at the end of the year. Goods in transit and in Bonded Warehouse stocks are stated

Net realisable value s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset s required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.



and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks,

Sale of goods

recognized on shipment basis, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fajr value of the
consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates.

Rendering of services
Revenue from job work services is recognized based on the services rendered in accordance with the terms

of contracts.

Interest income



and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

3.11. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity,

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Fina

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FV TPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ncial assets at amortised cost :

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

This

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial

assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

meth

od. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and



- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
_ changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

= The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third

‘ party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.



Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification .
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new groés
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
‘ amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost. '

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.




Assets continue to be measured at fajr value. Cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OC is reclassified
to P&L at the reclassification date,

(v) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financia] assets and credit rigk
exposure:

* Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

® Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS



ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below: ,

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

* Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis. -

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
() Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.



Y

(i) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

defined by Ind-AS 109,
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as F VTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and Borrowings

are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss. ‘

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expired. ‘

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments



d)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, options, cross
currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fajr value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if
a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
® Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
* Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment
* Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated. '

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure
to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is



- recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised
in other income or expenses. '

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast
sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover
(as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met.

3.12. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

3.13. Government Grants and Export incentives

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,

~ are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the

expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the
benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments, When loans or similar assistance are provided
by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the
effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially
recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities,

Export Incentive



3.14. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to:be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Déferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

®  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in

Joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

® When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

/ﬂ * In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is



probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. "

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority. ‘

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company‘recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards,
ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits '

() Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of
the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit
{é, plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis. |

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on



plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss: ‘
® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
® Net interest expense or income

¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

3.16. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares. )

3.17. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

b’ If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

liabilities affected in future periods.

4.1. Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

they occur.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. Ap actuarial valuation involves making various

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change

only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future
% inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 27,



such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 32 for further disclosures,

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management Jjudgement is required to

level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that could partly
support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined
that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried forward. '

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Intangible assets

Refer Note 3.7 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intangible assets has
been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment \
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets y

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
‘and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Goodhilt Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Trade receivables

Particulars N As at March 31,2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
In Rs. In Rs. In Rs.
Current
Unsecured, considered good 13,41,76,672 9,29,12,763 4,54,15,387
Doubtful 62,92,182 - -
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (62,92,182) - -
Total Trade and other receivables 13,41,76,672 9,29,12,763 4,54,15,387

Allowance for doubtful debts

Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the life

Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :

time expected credit loss model using provision matrix,

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
In Rs. In Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add : Allowance for the year 62,92,182 -
Less : Write off of bad debts (net of recovery) - -
Balance at the end of the year 62,92,182 -




7 (b) Loans

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
In Rs. In Rs. In Rs.
Unsecured considered good
Non-current
Loans to employees - - 1,45,839
- - 1,45,839
Current
Loans to employees - 3,05,075 2,49,996
- 3,05,075 2,49,996
Total Loans - 3,05,075 3,95,835
7 (¢) Cash and cash equivalent
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
In Rs. In Rs. In Rs.
Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 14,19,064 1,02,05,709 8,96,907
Cash on hand 473 40,255 66,380
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,19,537 1,02,45,964 9,63,287
7 (d) Other bank balance
Particul As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
articutars InRs. InRs. InRs.
Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 18,03,300 18,03,300 -
months lodged with Sales tax department
Total other bank balances 18,03,300 18,03,300 -
Total cash and bank balance 32,22,837 1,20,49,264 9,63,287
7 (¢) Other financial assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
In Rs. In Rs. In Rs.
Unsecured, considered good
Non-current
Security deposits
From Others 1,73,10,000 1,72,40,000 1,71,60,000
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 2,49,04,569 1,73,65,907 1,68,65,503
4,22,14,569 3,46,05,907 3,40,25,503
Current
Income receivable 46,14,575 1,20,35,609 1,70,45,489
Receivable in respect of Derivative contract 9,56,853 - -
Other receivable - 4,88,340 7,05,600
55,71,428 1,25,23,949 1,77,51,089
Total financial assets 4,77,85,997 4,71,29,856 5,17,76,592

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Cash flow hedge)

Foreign exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future purchases / sales in foreign currency are at fair

value through other comprehensive income (F VOCI) and change in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cr

4



7 (f) Financial assets by category

Particulars FVTPL, FVOCI Amortised cost
March 31,2017
Trade receivables 13,41,76,672
Loans -
Cash & bank. balance 32,22,837
- - 9,56,853 18,42,28,653
March 31, 2016
Trade receivables - . . 9,29,12,763
Loans - - - 3,05,075
Cash & bank balance - - - 1,20,49,264
Other financial assets - - - 4,71,29,856
Total Financial assets - - - 15,23,96,958
April 1, 2015
Trade receivables - - 4,54,15,387
Loans ’ - - 3,95,835
Cash & bank balance - - 9,63,287
Other financial assets - - 5,17,76,592
Total Financial assets - - - 9,85,51,101
For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33.
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.
Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets
. As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015
Particulars , InRs. InRs. InRs,
Unsecured, considered good
Non-current
Capital advances 38,79,755 42,34,557 99,55,868
Pre-paid expense 1,60,619 -
38,79,755 43,95,176 99,55,868
Current
Advance to suppliers
To Others 3,43,20,928 1,40,31,004 42,79,375
Balance with collectorate of central excise and customs 18,71,688 22,39,534 4,01,086
Export incentive receivable 2,42,09,107 1,16,31,832 3,37,808
Prepaid expenses 11,00,213 8,82,857 2,74,821
Other Current Asset 20,68,840 3,21,012 61,91,095
6,35,70,776 2,91,06,239 1,14,84,185
Total 6,74,50,531 _3,35,01415 2,14,40,053

Advance to Directors or to firm / Private company where director is
interested

C’.

¢



Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

B As at March 31,2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015

Particulars

In Rs, In Rs. In Rs.
Raw materials 4,37,99,365 1,75,96,834 25,80,019
Accessories 7,69,63,498 4,33,10,757 51,25,593
Fuel 10,46,315 3,54,177 2,08,319
Work-in-progress 2,49,38,538 52,99,652 69,01,305
Finished goods 10,58,35,956 5,18,40,694 91,01,885
GIT-Finished goods - 36,41,106 -
Stores and spares 26,61,526 48,04,541 16,87,023
Total 25,52,45,198 12,68,47,761 2,56,04,144
Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Nef)

. As at March 31,2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Particulars In Rs. In Rs. In Rs.
Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) 17,11,835 27,39,571 32,28,461
Total 17,11,835 27,39,571 32,28,461




Arvind Goodhill Suit Mannflcturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 ; Equity share capital

Authorised share capital . ’

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 I,O0,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Issued and subscribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs,10 each 8,40,000 84,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000 6,80,000 68,00,000
Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8,40,000 84,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000 6,80,000 68,00,000
Total - 8,40,000 84,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000 6,80,000 68,00,000

At the beginning of the period 6,80,000 68,00,000 6,80,000 68,00,000
Add:

Shares issued during the year - - 1,60,000 16,00,000 - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 8,40,000 84,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000 6,80,000 68,00,000

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

11.3. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

Arvind Limited- Holding Company 4,28,400 51.00 4,28,400 51.00 3,46,800 51.00
Goodhill Corporation (Japan)- Asscoiate Company 2,43,600 29.00 2,43,600 29.00 1,97,200 29.00
F-One Limited (Japan)- Associate Company i 1,68,000 20.00 1,68,000 20.00 1,36,000 20.00

11.4 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 34



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus

Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial stat 40,18,00,000 32,34,00,000
Received during the year - 7,84,00,000
Balance at the end of the year 40,18,00,000 40,18,00,000

Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial stat : (5,63,63,225) (5,76,40,599)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,39,57,841 (16,210)
OCI for the year 12,91,292 12,93,584
Balance at the end of the year (3,11,14,092) (5,63,63,225)
Total reserves & surplus 37,06,85,908 34,54,36,775

Note 12.2 Other comprehensive income

Hedge reserve
Bal as per last fi ial - -
Add: gain / (loss) for the year 9,56,853 -
Less: Tax impact (2,95,668) -
Balance at the end of the year 6,61,185 -
Total Other comprehensive income 6,61,185 -
Total Other equity 37,13,47,093 34,54,36,778

Note 13 : Financial liabilities

13 (a) Long-term Borrowings

Long-term Borrowings (refer note (2) to (c) below)
Noa-current portion

Secured :
Term loan from Banks 16,10,98 446 21,35,53,522 21,24,00,000
16,10,98,446 21,35,53,522 21,24,00,000
Current maturities
Secured .
Term loan from Banks 6,50,00,000 4,62,00,000 3,76,00,000
6,50,00,000 4,62,00,000 3,76,00,000
Total long-term borrowings 22,60,98,446 25,97,53,522 25,00,00,000
Short-term Borrowings (vefer note (d) & (¢) below)
Secured B
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 9,43,63,980 5,08,22,623 2,96,51,459
Unsecured
Intercorporate Deposits
From Others 8,17,74,961 - -
Total short-term borrowings 17,61,38,941 5,08,22,623 2,96,51,459

Total borrowings 40,22,37,387 31,05,76,145 27,96,51,459




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Nature of security:
Term loan of Rs. 22,60,98,446/-

Term Loans from Banks of Rs. 22,60,98,446/- are secured by First charge over the entire fixed assets and second charge over entire stock, receivables and other
current assets of the Company both present and future.

Hire Pu}chqse foans from Banks are d against hypothication of related Vehicles,

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

From Banks
Canara Bank 16,88,00,000
Base Rate
+1.05% | Repayable in 20 quarterly instalments starting from
- quarter ending June 30, 2015
State Bank Of India 5,56,78,765
Base Rate
+4.40% | Repayable in 20 quarterly instalments starting from
quarter ending June 30, 2015
Hire Purchase Loans : 16,19,681] 9.75% Repayable in 60 equated installments.
Nature of Security

Working Capital Facilities from Banks

Loans from banks are secured by:

i. First charge over entire stocks, receivables and other current assets and second charge over entire fixed assets of the Company both present and future,
ii. Additionally d by Corp G given by Arvind Limited, the holding company.

Rate of Interest

Loans from banks carry interest rates of 1.05% above base rate.
Inter Corporate Deposit carries interest rate of 10.25% per annum.

13 (b) Trade payable

Current

Acceptances - - ' -
Other trade payable (Refer note below) 20,10,66,964 10,36,07.495 2,91,79,850
20,10,66,964 10,36,07,495 . 2,91,79,850
Total 20,10,66,964 - 18,36,07,495 2,91,79,850
a The Company has not received any intimation from li ding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006

and hence disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding;
(a) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year;

(b) Interest paid during the year; .

(c) Amount of p made to the supplier beyond the ippointed day during accounting year;

(d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment;

(e) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

(f) Further interest ining due and payable even in the ding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise. have
not been given.
The Company is making efforts to get the confirmations from the liers as regard to their status under the said Act.

13 (¢) Other financial Liabilities

Current

Current maturity of long term borrowings 6,50,00,000 4,62,00,000 3,76,00,000

Interest accrued but not due 17,368 60,000 -

Payable to employees 1,78,03,013 1,42,44,653 1,06,54,713

Deposits from customers and others 18,454 18,454 18,454

Payable in respect of capital goods - 22,64,009 57,37,765

Book overdraft - - 1,83.41,536
' 8,28,38,835 6,27,87,116 7,23,52,468

Total 8,28,38,835 6,27,87,116 7,23,52,468
=t




Arvind Goodhill Suit Mnnufncturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

3 (d) Financial liabilities by cat,

March 31, 2017
Borrowings
Trade Ppayable
Current maturity of long term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due
Payable to employees
Deposits from customers and others
Total Financial liabj ies

33,72,37,387

20,10,66,964

6,50,00,000

17,368

1,78,03,013
1

March 31, 2016
Borrowings
Trade payable
Current maturity of long term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due

Payable in respect of capital goods

26,43,76,145
10,36,07,495
4,62,00,000
60,000

22,64,009
Payable to employees 1,42,44,653
Deposits from customers and others 18,454
Total Financial liabilities 43,07,70,756
April 1, 2015 R
Borrowings ) - . - 24,20,51,459
Trade Ppayable - - 2,91,79,850
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 3,76,00,000
Payable to employees - - 1,06,54,713
Deposits from customers and others - - 18,454
Payable in respect of capital goods - - 57,37,765
Book Overdrait - - 1,83,41,536
Total Financial liabilities : - - 34,35,83,177

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33,
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

Note 14 : Provisions

- Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 27)
Provision for leave encashment 20,58,172 7,94,187 5,62,961
Provision for gratuity 40,386,902 2547,198 16,00,118
' 61,45,074 33,41,385 21,63,079
Short-term
Provision for ployee benefits (refer Note 27)
Provision for leave encashment 87,981 36,986 fg,::::
Provision for gratuity 29.739 16,232 z
1,17,720 53,218 © 39,514

Total 62,62,794 33,94;603 22!02!593




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacmring Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 15 : Goverament grant

Non-current
Deferred income

3,20,70,755 3,43,62,586 -
3,20,70,755 3,43,62,586
Current

Deferred income

21,80,881 20,69,931 .
21,30,881 20,69,931 -
Total 3,42.51.636 3,64,32,517 N
L - e 3:42,51,636 = 6432517

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain ite,

ms of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attached to these grants as at March 3 1. :

Government grant

Asat April |

e
3,64,32,517 -
Received during the year - . 3,98,62,497
Released to statement of profit and loss (21,80,881) (34,29,980)
As at March 31 i 3,42,51,636 3,64,32,517

Note 16 : Other current

Current .
Advance from customers 37,442,247 1,47,763 1,86,020
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at 61,43,747 33,75,701 14,13,541
source
Other liabilities 14,34,268 3,46,955 18,227
1,13,20,262 38,70,419 16,17,788
e — 16,17,788
Total 1,13,20,262 38,70,419 ,17,




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 17 : Revenue from operations

Sale of products 52,11,13,054 42,85,40,327

Sale of services 2,75,09,883 ) 4,67,34,924
Operating income

Waste sale 2,00,448 11,64,311

Export incentives - 3,48,68,467 1,62,30,350

: 3,50,68.915 1,73,94,661

Total - 58,36,91!852 49,26,69,912

Note 18 : Other income

Interest income 14,29 876 ) 11,10,981
Government grants 3,02,63,590 34,29,980
Exchange rate difference (net) 33,93,872 74,63,540
Miscellaneous income 11,63,996 16,29,197
Total 3,62,51,334 1,36,33,698

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. Additionally Governent grant is
received for Employee Benefit expenses as per State Governent scheme for employment generation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants as at March 3 1,2017.

/,.



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 19 : Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Stock at the beginning of the year 6,09,07,591 77,05,612
Add : Purchases 12,48,75 807 29,66,90,395

18,57,83,398 30,43,96,007
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 12,07,62,863 6,09,07,591
Raw materials and components consumed ] 30,65,46,261 24,34,88,416
Total 30,65,46,261 24,34,88,416

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods ) 10,58,35,956 5,54,81,800
Work-in-Progress 2,49,38.538 52,99,652
13,07,74,494 6,07,81,452
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 5,54,81,800 91,01,885
‘Work-in-Progress 52,99,652 69,01,305
6,07,81,452 1,60,03,190
(Increase) / Decrease in stocks (6,99,93,042) (4,47,78,262)
Total . (6,99,93,042) (4,47,78,262)

Note 21 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 27) 21,22,51,561 16,40,56,043
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,41,31,890 2,25,92,434
Welfare and training expenses 26,42,816 , 25,71,632
Total 23,90,26,267 18,92!20!109

Note 22 : Finance costs

" Interest expense - Loans '2,31,52,628 1,45,02,730
Interest expense - Working capital loans 65,66,474 44,51,060
Interest expense - others ) 25,27,734 22,082
Other finance cost 15,48,525 .1,57,500

_Total . 3,37,95,361 1,91,33,372

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on Tangible assets (Refer Note 5) 2,93,40,386 2,69,46,043
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 5,92.320 2,86,062

Total 2,99,32,706 2,72,32,105




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 24 : Other expenses

Power and fuel 1,74,26,970 : 1,60,54,726
Stores consumed 67,35,785 35,69,703
Insurance 2,55,415 4,07,732
Processing charges ) 56,41,835 46,60,107
Printing, stationery & communication . 52,41,937 32,55,221
Rent 2,47,61,276 2,38,70,116
- Commission, Brokerage & discount 1,80,946
Rates and taxes - 6,644
Repairs :

To Building 1,09,389 24,367

To Machineries (including spares consumption) 49,37,932 43,59,117

To others 4,55,069 . 2,48217
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 1,17,45,579 4527518
Legal & Professional charges 16,16,210 : 18,90,437
Conveyance & Travelling expense : 25,00,418 13,64,153
Advertisement and publicity - 12,800
Secutiy Expenses 20,68,382 25,62,826
Miscellaneous Labour charges - 17,799
Provision for doubtful debts 62,92,182 -
Bad debt written off 9,89,501 -
Bank charges 15,23,178 12,76,334
Auditor's remuneration 5,26,250 - 4,11,350
Miscellaneous expenses 97,70,827 37,48,746
M . 10,27,79,081 7,22,67,913

Payment to Auditors (Net of service tax)

Payment to-Auditors as

Auditors 2,50,000 2,50,000
For tax audit 55,000 55,000
For taxation matters 22,500 22,500
For Other certification work 1,62,180 53,300
For reimbursement of expenses 36,570 30,550
Total 5,26,250 4,11,350




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Income tax

The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 3 1,2016 are :

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current income tax

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense

(4,61,01,289)

(2,43,833)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

(4,61,01,289)

(2,43,833)

OCI secti

Statement to Other comprehensive income (0CI)
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses

5,77,437 5,78,462
Net gains / (loss) on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 2,95,668 -
Deferred tax charged to OCI 8,73,105 5,78,462

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied b

A) Current tax

y domestic tax rate for the year ended March 3 1, 2017 and March 31, 2016.

Accounting profit before tax froem continuing operations (2,21,43,448) (2,60,043)
Tax @ 30.90% (March 31, 2016: 30.90%) (68,42,325) (80,353)
Adjustment

Unused tax losses (3,86,06,519) -
Other adjustments 2,20,660 4,14,982
At the effective income tax rate of Nil (March 31, 2016 : Nil) (4,52,28,184) 3,34,629

B) Deferred tax

Impact on Term loan arrangement fees 2,59,622 3,34,629 - (75,007) (3,34,629)
OCI impact of Hedge Reserve 2,95,668 - - 2,95,668 -
Others- Carry forward loss (4,54,48,845) - - (4,54,48,845) -
Deferred tax expense/(income)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (4,48,93,555) 394,629 - (4,52,28,184) (3,34,629)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets (4,54,48,845) - -
Deferred tax liabilities 5,55,290 3,34,629 -
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) net (4,48,93,555) 3,34,629 -

| March 31,2017 M“Z';;‘:l’
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net In Rs. In Rs. 5
Opening balance as of April 1 (3,34,629) -
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 4,61,01,289 2,43,833
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (8,73,105) (5,78,462)
Closing balance as at March 31 4,48,93,555 (3,34,629)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current

tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

G
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 26 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

"A. Foreign Exch; Derivati

Forward contracts
Sales GBP 3,48,991 2,83,45,897 . - - - -

All derivative contracts stated above are for the purpose of hedging the underlying foreign currency exposure.

E Not Hedged

Receivables USD 5,10,634 3,31,14,605 1,31,732 87,27,902 55,352 ‘ 34,59,516
EUR 115 7,969 - - - -
GBP 4,11,207 3,32,67,678 92,991 88,77,851 - -

Payable to creditors USD 3,62,529 2,35,09982 230,155 1,52,48919 - -
GBP 1,93,427 1,56,48,719 - - - -

JPY 66,955 38,851 66,955 39,497 - -
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_ T ARUeaniu ouit Manuflcturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financia) Statements

Note 33 ; Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company S principal financial liabﬂiti&s, other than ivatj ‘€S, comprise ings and trade & other ayables. The main e of
s : " ) . Pl Bk
A ¥ one. ; .p OWIngs an p - 1 purpos these financial liabilities iz to finance the
that derive du'ectly from its Operations,

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquid;
nstruments, such as foreign exch nge forward i
variable interest rate ©s. Derivati

The Company's risk management is carried oyt by a Treasury dej artment under polici i
et peraion nih g A 1 ury dep; uny er pol cies app'roved by the Board of directors. Com

. . . e P . i
exchange rigk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-d

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wily fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest

rate risk, currency risk and other price tisk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected market risk include borrowi i
. wings, d its, Investm d
other Teceivables, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments, by o pesit vt ade s

Wltbm the vgn’ous ggﬁodologi&s 1o analyse.gnd manage risk, Company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity analysis” on Symmetric basis. This toof enables the risk managers 1o
identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a
specific set of assumptions. The risk estimates provided here assume:

- & parallel shift of 50 basis point of the interest rate yeild curves in all the currencies.

- & simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potential economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditi and reflects esti d changes resulti g from the sensitivity
analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these esg; due to actual devel p in the global financial markets.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market varigbles on: the carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and Provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant stat of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial Liabilities
held at March 31,2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 including the effect of | hedge accounting.

- The sensitivity of equity is calculgted by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges as at March 3 1, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 for the effects of the assumed
changes of the underlying risk .

Interest rate risk Y

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in market rates of interest, The Company seeks to mitigate such risk by entering into interest rate
derivative financial instruments such as interest rate SWaps or cross-currency interest rate swaps. Interest rate Swap agreements are used to adjust the Pproportion of tota] debt, that are subject
to variable and fixed interest rates,

of the are not exchanged. No other cash payments are made unless the agreement is terminated prior to maturity, in which case the amount paid or received in settlement
is established by agreement at the time of termination, and usually rep the net present value, at current rates of interest, of the ining obligations to exch 1ge p under the
terms of the contract.
Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, afier the impact of hedge accounting. With
all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Le



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2017
Increase in 50 basis points 16,02,312 16,02,312
Decrease in 50 basis points -16,02,312 ~16,02,312
March 31, 2016
Increase in 50 basis points 15,52,881 15,52,881
Decrease in 50 basis points -15,52,881 -15,52,881
April 1,2015
Increase in 50 basis points 13,938,287 13,98,257
Decrease in 50 basis points -13,98257 -13,98,257
Exclusion from this lysis are as foll
- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the carrying amount of this category of instruments, there is no net income impact and
they are excluded from this analysis )

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign ex
y and in foreign imarily i i

to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts, foreign exchange options or currency swaps towards hedging risk
o o f

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per established risk management policy.
Details of the hedge & unhedged position of the Company given in Note no.26

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and GBP rates 1o the functional y of respective entity, with all other variables held
The Company’s p to foreign 'y changes for all other currencies is not material, The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the Company’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in

the fair value of foreign currency monetary items designated as cash flow hedge.

March 31, 2017 +2% 1,92,092 192,092
- 2% (1,92,092) (1,92,092)
March 31, 2016 +2% (1,30,420) (1,30420)
2% 1,30420 130420

April 1,2015 2% 69,190 69,190

2% 69,190 (69,190

March 31, 2017 +2% 159 159
2% (159) (159)
March 31,2016 +2% -
-2% N -
April 1,2015 +2% -
2%

March 31, 2017 2% 3,552,379 3,52,379

’ 2% (3.52,379) 0.52379)

h 31, 2016 2% 1,77,587 1,771,557

Mareh 3, 2% 1,77,557) 1,77,557)
April 1,2015 2% - -
2% - -

(o

4



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Themovemmtmﬂaepre-mxeﬂectmammlofachangemﬂ\efmrvalueof not desi d in a hedge relationship. Although the fi have not been
d in a hedge relati ip, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions when they occur.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial i or contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, incl ding deposits with banks, foreign exch ions and other financial i

Trade receivables

C credit risk is by each busi unit subject to the Company’s established policy, p d and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade recuvabl&c
are non-interest beanng and are generally on 14 days to 30 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on interal rating criteria. O dii i

are regular} d and any shi| to major are lly covered by letters of credit. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely
distributed both ically and hically.

An impairment nnalysns is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor i are ped into homog groups
and d for i ly. The calculation is based on actual d historical data. The i p to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The C pany eval the ion of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as

its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is d by the Company’s treasury dep in d with the Company’s policy. I of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties who meets the mini threshold under the party risk process. The Company itors the ratings, credit spreads
and financial strength of its counterparties. Based on its on-goi of P risk, the group adjusts its exposure to various ies. The Company's

exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet as ofMarch 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 & April 1, 2015 is the carrying amount as dlsclosed in Note 31.

(¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring ptable losses. The Company's objective is to,
at all times mamtam optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and coll The Company closely itors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management
system. It mai dequate sources of financing i g bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from both domsuc and intemnational banks at an optimised cost. It also enjoys strong access

to domestic capital markets across equity.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based.on | undi d

Year ended March 31,2017 ~
Interest bearing borrowings® 17,71,38,941 1,60,00,000 4,80,00,000 16,10,98,446 -
Trade payables 17,18,08,368 2,68,72,876 23,85,720 - .
Other financial liabilities# 1,78,38.835 - - - -
36,67,86,144 4.28,72.876 5,03,85,720 16,10,98,446 -
Year ended March 31, 2016
Interest bearing borrowings* ) 5,08,22,623 1,09,00,000 3,53,00,000 20,67,96,072 67,57,450
Trade payables 10,01,37,250 34,70,245 - - -
Other financial liabilities# 1,65,87,116 - - . - -
l6l75ﬁ6289 1143|7OE45 3£3,00£00 20£726I072 67,57&
Year ended April 1, 2015
Interest bearing borrowinge® _ ) 2,96,51,459 94,00,000 2,82,00,000 21,24,00,000 -
Trade payables 2,57,81,531 33,84,508 13,811 - -
Other financial liabilities# 347,52.468 - - - -
9.01&5458 1,27,84,508 282,13.811 21.24. 00 -
* Includ interest p based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period over the tenor of the borrowings.

# Other financial liabilities includes interest accrued but not due of Rs. 17,368 (March 31, 2016 : Rs.60,000 and April 1, 2015 : Rs.Nil). Current maturity of long-term borrowings is
included in interest bearing borrowing part in above note.

Note 34 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company The pnmlry
bjective of the Company’s capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its busi; and shold

value.

The Company its capital and makes adj to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its busi i . To maintain or adjust the capital structure,

the Company may adjust the dividend to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders of issue new shares. The Company momtors capml mmg ngeanngmuo which is net debt

divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term (including other bank bal

Interest-bearing loans and b ings 40,22,37,387 31,05,76,145 27,96,51,459
(Note 13 a)

Less: cash and cash equivalent (2,81,27,406) (2.94,15,171) (1,78,28,790)
(including other bank balance) (Note ’
7¢)

Net debt 37.41,09,981 28,11,60,974 26,18,22.669
Equity share capital (Note 11) 84,00,000 84,00,000 68,00,000
Other equity (Note 12) 37,13.47,093 34,54,36,775 26,57,59,401
Total capital 37.97,47,093 35.38,36,778 27,25,59,401
Capital and net debt 75.3857,074 $3,49.97,749 53.43.82.070
Gearing ratio 49.63% 44.28% 49.00%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the C pany’s capital other things, aims to ensure that it meets fi ial hed to the i st-bearing loans and
borrowmgs that define capital i Breach in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loam and borrowmgs There have been no

in the fi of any mterest-beanng loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended Marci| 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015.

Loan covenants
Unger the terms of the major burrowing facilities, the C pany has complied with the ired financial ts through out the reporting periods.
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Note 35 : First- time adoption of Ind AS
These financia] statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first annual In
with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the C
(Indian GAAP), :

d AS financia] statements, the Company has prepared in accordance
] , the Company prepared its financial Statements in accordance with
Ompanies Act 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

or the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies, In preparing

these financjal Statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet wag Prepared as at Apri] |, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. Thjg note

explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in Testating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at Apri] 1,
2015 and the Previously published Indian GAAP financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016,

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian ‘Accounting Standards™ allows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective application of
certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

Ind AS optional exemptions

1 Deemed cost
Transition to Ind AS
Property, Plant & Equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at cost eligible under Ind AS 16 less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible Assets .
Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure items of Intangible assets at cost eligible under Ind AS 38 less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ind AS iandatory exceptions
1 Estimates

2 Classification and measurement of financial assets , ) ] )
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (investment in debt Instruments) on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS ' ' .
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS:

Reconciliafion between previous GAAP and Ind AS
1. Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 & April 1, 2015

Equ ] 7,25,59,401
Equity under previous GAAP 35,30,88,463 27,25,59,
Other adjustments

T. t on Ind AS adjustments
. e




2. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
015:1

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 5,29,062

Reclassification of Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans to Other comprehensive income i (18,72,046)

Other adjustments i 10,82,941

Tax impacts on Ind AS adjustments 2,43,833

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
Re i defined benefit plans (net of tax i 12,93,584

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 3f, 2016 and total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,2016

i. Re-measurements gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans
Under Ind AS, re-measurement i.e. actuarial gain loss and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other com prehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these re-measurement were

forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended on March 31, 2016 increased by Rs.12,24,168. There
is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2016.

ii. Other adjustments
Other adjustments includes adjustments due to the GAAP differences related to recognition and measurement of employee benefits, financial charges etc.

iii. Tax impacts on Ind AS adjustments -

The impact of transition adjustments together with Ind AS mandate of using balance sheet approach (against profit and loss approach under previous
GAAP) for computation of deferred tax has resulted in adjustment to Reserves, with consequential impact in the subsequent periods to the Statement of
profit and loss or Other comprehensive income, as the case may be.

iv. Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at April 1, 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

v. Classification & Presentation

a. Recognition of certain Government grant as deferred income

The government grant related to fixed assets was netted off with the cost respective PPE under previous GAAP. Under Ind AS, PPE has been
recognised at gross cost and government grant has been recognised as deferred income.

vi. Statement of cash flows
The impact of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS on the statement of cash flows is due to various reclassification adjustments recorded under Ind

AS in Balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalents under these two GAAPs like bank
overdraft.

Note 36 : Standards issued but not yet effective -
The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements is disclosed
below. The Company intends to adopt this standard when it becomes effective.

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to

evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for
liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The effect on the financial statements is
being evaluated by the Company.

G-
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Note 37 : Operating segment

The Company's business activity falls within a single primary business segment of manufacture of garments.
Accordingly the Company is a single segment company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment".

Further, no single customer contributes to more than 10% of the company's revenue.

Geographical segment

Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

In Rs.
Particulars March 31,2017 March 31,2016
Segment Revenue*
a) In India 24.82,12,145 28,62,82,791
b) Rest of the world 33,54,79,707 20,52,12,120
Total Sales 58,36,91,852 49,26,69,912
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) In India 98,63,34,719 81,10,33,716
b) Rest of the world 6,63,90,252 1,76,05,983
Total 1,05,27,24,971 82,86,39,699
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
a) In India 50,21,18,101 51,75,49,170
b) Rest of the world -
Total 50,21,18,101 51,75,49,170

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and deferred tax asset.

Note 38 : Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination notes as defined in MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E)
dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016
to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per notification is given below:

Aount i Rs

Closing cash balance as on November 8, 2016 2,06,500 8,833 2,15,333
(+) Permitted Receipts - . - - -

(-) Permitted Payments 2,000 - 2,000
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 2,04,500 7,090 2,11,590
Closing cash balance as on December 30, 2016 - 1,743 1,743

*For the purposes of this clause, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of
India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.0. 3407(E), dated November 8, 2016.

39 Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified .
Figures of the carlier year have been regrouped or reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements.
of the payables and receivables i



